1 2 3 4 5	City of Lake Forest Park - Planning Commission Draft Regular Meeting Minutes: September 13, 2022 In-person and Zoom Hybrid Meeting
5 6 7 8	<u>Planning Commissioners present</u> : Chair Maddy Larson, Vice Chair Lois Lee, Ashton Alvarez, Melissa Cranmer, Ira Gross, Meredith LaBonte, Walter Hicks, David Kleweno
9 10	<u>Staff and others present</u> : Steve Bennett, Planning Director; Nick Holland, Senior Planner; Councilmember Lorri Bodi
11 12	Members of the Public: Sally Yamasaki; John Brew; Michael Troyer; Donna Hawkey; Randi Sibonga
13 14 15	Planning Commissioners absent: TJ Fudge
15 16 17	Call to order: Chair Larson called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.
17 18 19	Land Acknowledgement: Cmr. LaBonte read the land acknowledgement.
20 21 22 23	<u>Approval of Agenda</u> Cmr. Gross made a motion to approve the agenda, Cmr. Lee seconded, and the motion to approve the agenda carried unanimously.
23 24 25 26 27	<u>Approval of Meeting Minutes</u> Cmr. Gross made a motion to bring the August 17, 2022 meeting minutes to the table. Cmr. Lee seconded and noted some typographical errors that needed to be fixed.
27 28 29	All voted to approve the minutes as amended, and the motion carried unanimously.
29 30 31 32	Meeting Dates: Chair Larson noted that the next regular meeting is scheduled for October 11, 2022.
33 34 35 36 37 38	Citizen Comment Sally Yamasaki, Donna Hawkey, and Michael Troyer talked about their group of volunteer citizens that are attempting to create community land trusts in LFP. Sally mentioned they will be presenting a plan to the City Council. Mr. Troyer explained how community land trusts work and that they could be an answer to affordable housing. He said housing of all types is needed. He referenced a book entitled Housing is a Homelessness Problem and passed a copy of the book around.
39 40 41 42 42	Cmr. Lee asked what type of hurdles the group is experiencing. Mr. Troyer explained some of the challenges the group faces in administering community land trusts. Chair Larson said she would like to have the group back to present their information prior to going to Council.
43 44 45 46 47 48	Report from City Council Liaison Councilmember Bodi said there isn't much on which to update the Commission. She said that there could be a presentation about the Commission's sign code amendment recommendations in October, but the Council is in budget deliberations.
48 49 50	Councilmember Bodi mentioned that the Council is looking at reducing speed limits on some streets.
50 51 52	Cmr. Cranmer asked Councilmember Bodi if a sidewalk and street safety bond can be passed. Councilmember Bodi responded and indicated that different sources of funding are being explored, but
	1

- 1 sidewalks do not currently have a funding source other than public grant funds. Councilmember Bodi 2 3 indicated that a raise in property taxes could be a way to raise additional capital, but it would need to be
- approved by the voters. 4

5 Chair Larson asked if the Council is considering additional stop signs. Councilmember Bodi confirmed that 6 7 they are looking into additional signage because it doesn't cost much.

8 Councilmember Bodi said that the Council is considering doing street overlays less frequently to save funds. 9

10 Cmr. Lee asked if the City could invest in a pedestrian stencil in the right of way. Councilmember Bodi said 11 that she will pass on that idea. 12

13 **Old Business**

14 Reasonable Use Exception Code Update - Review draft code amendment 15 and consider recommendation to City Council

16 Chair Larson introduced the topic and discussed a potential schedule for this code amendment.

- 17 Cmr. Kleweno asked about how restrictions for critical area tracts came up, Chair Larson responded
- 18 with an explanation. Director Bennett provided his perspective on the issue and said that tracts are

19 typically used for restricting portions of land. Discussion continued on the benefits and drawbacks

- 20 of conservation easements. Director Bennett explained how the current regulations relate to
- 21 conservation easements. Chair Larson noted that there was not a majority of the Commission who
- 22 wanted to devote time to developing code language on conservation easements. Cmr. Kleweno said
- 23 his questions had been answered.
- 24 Chair Larson asked if all had a chance to review the draft code amendments that Director Bennett
- 25 provided. Cmr. Alvarez and Hicks provided helpful corrections to the conversation on section (H). She
- 26 recited what she believed to be a more straightforward way to draft the section. Director Bennett
- 27 also provided input. Cmr. LaBonte suggested the section read; "the hearing examiners decision
- 28 granting an exception and all other mitigation documents shall be recorded against the real property
- 29 in question with the King County Recorder's office." All agreed with Cmr. LaBonte's suggested 30
- language.
- 31 Chair Larson asked Commissioners if there were any concerns or questions about the language in
- 32 subsection (G). Director Bennett provided background on why it read the way it was drafted. He
- 33 explained the process that the City might use to implement the rule and provided a specific
- 34 explanation to Cmr. Kleweno, who had questions on the process. Cmr. Gross asked what might 35 happen if the owner didn't comply with the process. Director Bennett responded and provided an
- 36 explanation about how the staff might be able to track monitoring over several parcels and years.
- 37 Chair Larson explained how section (G) can solve problems that can occur with compliance. She
- 38 asked about how the financial guarantee is secured by the City and Director Bennett provided an
- 39 explanation of the acceptable types of financial securities. Cmr. Hicks asked if an owner could put
- 40 up a set amount of funds. Director Bennett responded affirmatively and provided an explanation of
- 41 how the process usually works. Cmr. Lee asked what would occur if the cost exceeds the amount of
- 42 any mitigation work and Director responded and provided an explanation of how the amount is
- 43 determined. Cmr. Hicks suggested adding "monitoring" to the section, so that funds can be
- 44 recovered for the purpose of monitoring. All agreed. Discussion continued on the topic. Director
- 45 Bennett suggested a way to add monitoring to the section and all agreed with his suggestion.
- 46
- 47 Chair Larson asked if there is anything else that should be changed. Cmr. Kleweno asked why the
- 48 Commission spent so much time on this issue and Cmr. Alvarez responded and provided
- 49 background on the issue and suggested reasons why the Commission pursued revisions to the code

- 1 to recommend to the Council. Chair Larson added her perspective on the issue. Cmr. Kleweno
- 2 asked if there was an alternative to making code change recommendations to the Council. Director
- 3 Bennett responded that the Planning Commission's primary role is to recommend land use code and
- 4 policy changes. The Council does not really give the Commission the authority to do much else.
- 5 Discussion continued on the topic as it relates to subdivisions. Cmr. Lee said that she takes her 6 responsibility as a commissioner seriously and that her role is to balance development with critical
- responsibility as a commissioner seriously and that her role is to balance development with criticalarea preservation.
- 8 Chair Larson said that a public hearing on this topic has not occurred and that the memo she drafted
- 9 to the Council mentions that there will be a need for a public hearing. She asked for input from the
- 10 Commission if a public hearing is needed. Cmr. Lee said that the Council will need to have a public
- 11 hearing on the code amendments at some point. Cmr. LaBonte said that this topic requires
- 12 education and suggested that the community should be prepped prior to a hearing. She suggested a
- 13 newsletter for the purpose of educating the public on the topic of RUE. A majority of the
- 14 Commission decided that a public hearing at the Commission level wasn't necessary.
- 15 Chair Larson called for a vote. Cmr. Alvarez made a motion to approve the recommended changes
- 16 to section the 16.16.250 language discussed at this meeting and forward the recommendations to the
- 17 City Council. Cmr. Lee seconded. All voted and the motion passed unanimously.
- 18 Chair Larson presented the language of the memorandum she drafted to the Council which would
- 19 eventually accompany the recommended code changes. She presented some additional language
- 20 which detailed the need for better tracking of monitoring reports and asked if there was consensus
- 21 among Commissioners to included. Cmr. Lee suggested some edits to the language of the memo.
- 22 Discussion occurred on the language for the memo and the enforcement process for RUE
- 23 properties. Chair Larson said that she is concerned about making sure that people follow the
- 24 conditions of the RUE approval. Director Bennett suggested some language for the memo and
- 25 provided some perspective on how to explain the enforcement process. There was additional
- discussion about revisions to the memo. Director Bennett added changes to the version of the memo
- that the Commission was viewing during the meeting in response to the discussion and there were no
- 28 objections to those changes.
- 29 Chair Larson noted that the draft memo suggested additional staff be hired for enforcement.
- 30 Councilmember Bodi said that the permit fees should recover all of the costs the city incurs. She
- 31 suggested that the administration and enforcement of the program should be included with the
- 32 permit fees. She said that it is a good addition to the memo to mention additional staff be hired for
- and enforcement. Chair Larson asked if the Commission agrees with the language and all said that they
- 34 agreed. Cmr. Kleweno suggested some changes to the memo's language in paragraph three and all
- 35 agreed with his suggestions. Director Bennett suggested some clarifying language and all agreed with
- 36 his recommendation.
- 37 Cmr. Gross made a motion to approve the memo as discussed and amended, Cmr. Lee seconded and38 all voted and the motion passed unanimously.
- 39

40 <u>Old Business</u>

41 Initial Discussion of Comprehensive Plan Update –

- 42
- 43 Chair Larson proposed postponing discussion of the new business on the agenda. There was
- 44 agreement to take up the initial discussion of the Comprehensive Plan Update at the next meeting.

45 <u>Reports and Announcements</u>

- 46 Director Bennett said that an assistant planner has been hired and that the city arborist search continues.
- 47

1 Additional Citizen Comments:

- 2 3 4 Sally Yamasaki thanked the Commission and she said that public hearings are not helpful unless the public is educated. She talked about an example of how enforcement is applied. Cmr. Cranmer asked if the
- community land trust group has a website and Ms. Yamasaki responded and said that they did not.
- 5 6 7
 - Randi Sibonga said that the stewardship foundation appreciates the Commission's work on the RUE code.
 - She said that enforcement is important and that they looked at the Johnson property which has critical areas.
- 8 She said that there were nine properties listed in a table of RUE cases that the Commission had reviewed,
- 9 which have an impact on the health of the environment. She said that she filed a public records request on
- 10 the enforcement of the RUE and that she didn't get a complete set of annual monitoring reports. She asked
- 11 Director Bennett if she could get the monitoring report from April and how the annual reporting is tracked.
- 12 She offered resources to assist in the enforcement process. 13
- 14 John Brew said he was a member of the Stewardship Foundation and that he is happy that RUE code is being 15 amended the way it is.
- 16 17

24

Agenda for Next Meeting:

18 Comprehensive plan business and scope of work and schedule. 19

20 Adjournment:

21 Cmr. Hicks made a motion to adjourn the meeting, Cmr. Gross seconded, and the motion carried 22 unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 8:43 pm. 23

APPROVED:

Lois Lee, Vice Chair